VI.

Alamance County
HISTORIC PROPERTIES COMMISSION

124 W. EIm Street

Graham, North Carolina 27253

Alamance County
Historic Properties Commission

Tuesday, December 9, 2025, 6 p.m.

Commissioners’ Meeting Room
124 W. Elm Street, Graham, NC 27253

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. October 14, 2025

OLD BUSINESS
1. John Braxton and Pat Bailey Proclamation Presentations

NEW BUSINESS
1. By-Laws Board Membership Requirements for Appointment amendment

ANNOUNCEMENTS

ADJOURNMENT

Tel. (336) 570-4053



Alamance County

HISTORIC PROPERTIES COMMISSION
124 W. EIm Street

Graham, North Carolina 27253

Tel. (336) 570-4053

Alamance County
Historic Properties Commission

Tuesday, October 14, 2025, 6 p.m.

Commissioners’ Meeting Room
124 W. Elm Street, Graham, NC 27253

Present:
Chairman Rodney Cheek, Brian Scott Ward, John Greeson, Katherine Hadley, Laurie Smith, Chris Copsey, Gale
Pettiford, Megan Privett

Absent:
Aric Geda, Chris Wells, Emily White

Also Present:
Planning Director Matthew Hoagland

I.  CALLTO ORDER
Mr. Cheek called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm

Il.  OATH OF OFFICE
Mr. Cheek took the oath prior to the meeting. It was administered by Paralegal Annabelle Smith of the
Alamance County Attorney’s Office.

lll.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. September 9, 2025

Mr. Greeson made a motion to approve the minutes from September 9%. With a second with Mr. Copsey

Iv. OLD BUSINESS
1. John Braxton and Pat Bailey Proclamations

Mr. Hoagland reported that Mr. Geda had delivered the plagues and advised that the next course of action
would be to contact the family. Mr. Cheek acknowledged the lengthy process involved in obtaining the
proclamations and expressed appreciation for the effort that led to their completion. The Board members
reviewed the proclamations and engaged in a discussion about the historical significance and lasting
contributions of John Braxton and Pat Bailey. Mr. Hoagland and Mr. Cheek stated that they would get the ball
rolling on contacting the families. It was agreed that staff would first reach out to determine the family’s interest
in attending a meeting to view the proclamations. If the family is interested, both the family and the County
Commissioners will be invited to the November meeting. Mr. Hoagland suggested that, rather than presenting
the proclamations during a commissioners’ meeting, the family could be recognized at the November meeting



Alamance County

HISTORIC PROPERTIES COMMISSION
124 W. EIm Street

Graham, North Carolina 27253

Tel. (336) 570-4053

with a photograph taken to commemorate the occasion. He further recommended issuing a press release
through the local newspaper or the County website to publicly highlight and honor their contributions. Board
members agreed this would be a good course of action.

V. NEW BUSINESS
No new business.

VI.  ANNOUNCEMENTS
1. By Laws Update / Applicant Review Process

Mr. Hoagland discussed with the board a few bylaws that have to do with the application process. Mr. Cheek
stated that he believes the language in the bylaws should specify that members must reside in the
unincorporated areas of the county. He then inquired about which municipalities fall under the jurisdiction of
the Historic Properties Commission. Mr. Hoagland explained that the Alamance County HPC oversees historic
preservation matters within the municipalities of Elon, Swepsonville, and the Village of Alamance, as well as
other smaller jurisdictions. The Commission discussed the possibility of amending Section 4.3 of the bylaws to
clarify that members must reside in an area where the Alamance County HPC holds jurisdiction. Mr. Hoagland
posed the question of whether the Commission wished to narrow the potential applicant pool by limiting
membership based on place of residence, or to expand it by allowing individuals who reside within municipal
boundaries. Following discussion, Ms. Hadley and Mr. Greeson made a motion to amend Section 4.3 to state
that members must reside in an area of Alamance County represented by the Alamance County Historic
Properties Commission. Mr. Hoagland suggested that he would draft the proposed amendment to Section 4.3
and present it at the next meeting for review. Ms. Hadley and Mr. Greeson further motioned for Mr. Hoagland
to draft a new Section 4.3 and bring it to the next meeting. All members voted in favor of the motion.

Mr. Hoagland informed the Commission that a new member, Ms. Alanna Coombes, had been appointed during
the October 6™ County Commissioners’ meeting. He also reported that Mr. Aric Geda had submitted his
resignation from the Commission. Mr. Hoagland read Mr. Geda’s resignation letter aloud to the members and
encouraged the Commission to reach out to anyone who may be interested in applying to fill the vacant
position. Ms. Pettiford recommended that the Commission elect a new Vice Chair prior to the arrival of the
newly appointed member. Ms. Pettiford nominated Mr. Greeson for the position, and Ms. Smith seconded the
nomination. Mr. Greeson noted that he would be unable to attend the next scheduled meeting. Following
discussion, the Commission agreed to postpone the next meeting date to ensure his participation. All members
voted in favor of Mr. Greeson serving as Vice Chair. Mr. Cheek inquired whether the Commission could formally
amend the meeting schedule for the upcoming month. Mr. Hoagland confirmed that the change could be made
and stated that the Planning Department would prepare a flyer announcing the revised meeting date of
November 18 at 6:00 p.m. A motion to amend the meeting schedule was made by Mr. Ward and seconded by
Mr. Greeson. The motion carried unanimously. Mr. Hoagland concluded by stating that there were no further
announcements.

VII. ADJOURNMENT
Meeting adjourned at 6:39 PM.



Alamance County Historic Properties Commission
By-Laws and Meeting Procedures

Article I Meetings

Section 1.1 Purpose
The Alamance County Historic Properties Commission is charged with safeguarding the heritage

of the county by preserving property that embodies important elements of its cultural, social,
economic, and political, or architectural history.

The commission has these main functions:

» To make recommendations to the local governing board to designate selected properties as
historic landmarks.

» To make recommendations to the local governing board to designate selected areas as
historic districts.

» Toreview and act upon applications by property owners to make changes to locally-
designated historic landmarks or properties in a locally-designated historic district, to
ensure that inappropriate changes are not made.

» To educate the public about the county’s history and the value of its preservation.

» To advise and assist the county government in preservation planning.

Section 1.2 Annual Meetings
The annual meeting of the Alamance County Historic Properties Commission shall be in January.

At each annual meeting, the Commission shall elect members to the office of Chair and Vice-Chair.
The Commission shall also adopt a meeting schedule for the entire year; including the meeting
date of the annual meeting for the next calendar year.

Section 1.3 Regular Meetings
Regular meetings of the Alamance County Historic Properties Commission shall take place on the

second Tuesday of each month. Meetings will be held at 6:00 PM at the Alamance County Office
Building located at 124 W. Elm Street in Graham, North Carolina, in the Board of County
Commissioners room.

Section 1.4 Special Meetings, Change of Meeting Date, Time, or Location
In the event that a special meeting of the Alamance County Historic Properties Commission is

necessary, Commission members shall be notified, either verbally or in writing, no less than forty-
eight (48) hours prior to the time of the meeting.



Notification of any change in meeting date, time, or location shall be done in accordance with
applicable North Carolina General Statutes which regulate such notification. While not required by
Statute, reasonable efforts should be made to post such changes on the County website.

Section 1.5 Quorum

No votes or official action may be taken at any Historic Properties Commission meeting without
the presence of a quorum of members. A quorum shall consist of a majority of sitting members.

Section 1.6 Lack of Quorum

In the event that there is a lack of a quorum, the Chair shall adjourn the meeting. Unless otherwise
directed by the Chair at the meeting, all agenda items shall be placed on the next regular meeting
agenda.

Section 1.7 Order of Proceedings
All Historic Properties Commission meetings shall follow, in general, the following order of

proceedings:

Call to order

Roll Call

Approval of Minutes
Public Comments
Old Business

New Business
Announcements
Adjournment

© N W

The Chair of the Historic Properties Commission may, at their discretion, make changes to the
order of the agenda to accommodate the public.

Section 1.8 Public Comments

Anybody that attends a Historic Properties Commission meeting shall have the opportunity to
make public comments on any agenda item. Prior to speaking, each person shall give their name
and address for the minutes of the meeting. Time limitations may be placed on speakers, at the
discretion of the Chair, based upon the number of those wishing to address the Commission.

Section 1.9 Disruptions
Disruptions or disruptive behavior during a Historic Properties Commission meeting shall not be

tolerated. All disruptive behavior shall be enforced pursuant to N.C.G.S. 143-318.17 which states:



"A person who willfully interrupts, disturbs, or disrupts an official meeting and who, upon being
directed to leave the meeting by the presiding officer, willfully refuses to leave the meeting is guilty of
a Class 2 misdemeanor.”

Section 1.10 General Rules of Procedure
All meetings shall follow the general guidelines for procedure:

1. All Historic Properties Commission members shall be recognized by the Chair prior to
asking questions of Staff or citizens.

2. Staff shall direct all comments to the Chair and request recognition before addressing the
Board on any issue.

3. Prior to opening the floor for discussion among the members of the Commission, the Chair
may, at their discretion, solicit comments from the public.

4. Prior to taking any motions, the Chair shall open the floor for discussion among the
members of the Commission.

5. No vote may be taken without a motion and a second. In the event that a motion fails to
garner a second, the motion shall be considered dead and reported as such in the minutes
of the meeting.

6. All votes shall require a simple majority to carry.

Article II Officers

Section 2.1 Officers
The officers of the Alamance County Historic Properties Commission shall consist of a Chair and a
Vice-Chair, each of whom shall serve for a term of one year.

Section 2.2 Election of Officers

The officers of the Historic Properties Commission shall be elected for the ensuing year at the
annual meeting of the Historic Properties Commission. Elections will be determined by a simple
majority.

Section 2.3 Duties of Officers
The duties and powers of the officers of the Historic Properties Commission shall be as follows:

a. Chair:
1. To preside over the Commission at all meetings.
2. To call special meetings in accordance with these By-Laws.
3. To sign all official documents of the Historic Properties Commission.

b. Vice-Chair:



1. During the absence, disability, or disqualification of the Chair, the Vice-Chair shall
exercise or perform all the duties and be subject to all the responsibilities of the
Chair.

Section 2.4 Clerk to the Historic Properties Commission
The Planner shall serve as the Clerk to the Historic Properties Commission. The clerk shall be

responsible for the following:

1. Preparing all agenda packets for the Historic Properties Commission.
2. Ensuring that accurate minutes of the meeting are taken and reported.
3. Maintaining an archive of agendas and minutes for public review.

Article III Voting and Conflicts of Interest

Section 3.1 Commissioner Preparation

Each Historic Properties Commission member will familiarize himself or herself with the applications
under consideration.

Section 3.2 Conflicts of Interest

No Historic Properties Commission member may deliberate or vote on any matter in which they
have a direct financial interest or may benefit from. In the event that a Commission member does
have a conflict of interest, the Commission member shall request recusal from the Chair. Recusal
must occur before deliberation of an agenda item begins. Once recused, the member may not take
part in any discussion regarding the issue being considered.

Section 3.3 Voting
Each Historic Properties Commission member may cast one vote on any given item. A simple

majority is necessary for any motion to carry.

Section 3.4 Decision Making

The COA review process carried out by the Historic Properties Commission requires judgment of each
application based on the design guidelines as well as historical, archival, and archaeological information
about the property.

Article IV Board Membership

Section 4.1 General
All Historic Properties Commission members shall be appointed by the Alamance County Board of
Commissioners in accordance with the Alamance County Historic Properties Ordinance. The



Historic Properties Commission shall consist of at least eleven (11) members but no more than
fifteen (15).

Section 4.2 Terms

In accordance with the Alamance County Historic Properties Commission Ordinance, Commission
members shall serve three (3) year terms, with the opportunity for reappointment at the end of
term.

Section 4.3 Requirements for Appointment
All members must reside in Alamance County, and on a parcel of land under the jurisdiction of the

county’s Historic Properties Commission. Applicants living within a municipality or other specific
geographical boundaries that is governed by a separate historic properties commissions shall not
be considered for appointment. The majority of members shall have demonstrated special
interest, experience, or education in history, architecture, archaeology, or a related field.

Section 4.4 Recruitment

The Alamance County Historic Properties Commission may utilize a number of means to recruit
new members to fill positions of members who resign. Such means should include advertisement
on the County website and, if necessary, in the local newspaper.

Interested parties will be required to fill out a Commission Membership application, which
includes a brief summary of their qualifications or special interest. Applications will be kept on file
in the Planning Department for a period of two (2) years.

Section 4.5 Review of Applications
Applications for the Historic Properties Commission will be reviewed by the Planner to determine

basic eligibility based on residency. If eligible, applications will be given to the Historic Properties
Commission when a position becomes available for review at a regular meeting. The Historic
Properties Commission will then make a formal recommendation of appointment to the Board of
Commissioners.

Section 4.6 Meeting Attendance
All Historic Properties Commission members are expected to attend monthly Historic Properties

Commission meetings. If a member has more than three (3) unexcused absences in a calendar
year, the Chair of the Historic Properties Commission may request disciplinary action, including
but not limited to removal from the Commission. A Commission member will be granted an
excused absence if they inform planning staff at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the meeting
that they cannot attend. Any and all removals must be approved by the Alamance County Board of
Commissioners.



Section 4.7 Vacancies Due to Resignation, Death, Disability, etc.
In the event that a Historic Properties Commission vacancy occurs due to resignation, death,

disability, relocation out of the County, or any other reason other than normal expiration of term,
the Planner shall immediately make the Clerk to the Board Commissioners aware of the vacancy.
Attempts to fill the position shall begin with applications that are kept on file by the Clerk to the
Historic Properties Commission. If a replacement cannot be found in applications that are kept on
file, active recruitment shall begin pursuant to Section 4.4 of these By-Laws.

Should such a vacancy be the office of Chair, the Vice-Chair will become the Chair and a new Vice-
Chair will be elected at the next regular meeting.

Article V Miscellaneous

Section 5.1 Communication to the Commission

All communications to the Commission, including applications, petitions, emails (when specifically
directed to the Commission or appropriate for the Commission’s information, at the reasonable
discretion of Staff), or other referrals, shall be directed to the Planning Department and shall
thereafter be provided to the Commission.

Section 5.2 Board Requests

All requests for information (maps, ordinances, etc.) from the Planning Staff by a Historic
Properties Commission member shall be directed to the Planner. Any response by the Planner
shall be directed to the Historic Properties Commission as a whole.

Section 5.3 Amendments

The Historic Properties Commission may adopt, amend, repeal, or alter, in whole or in part, these
By-Laws by a majority vote at any regular meeting, provided that any changes requested have
been placed on the Commission’s regular meeting agenda.

Adopted by the Alamance County Historic Properties Commission on this the _9 day of February,
2016.

Chair

Attest, Planner



